
 

 

 
 

 
 

County Hall 
Rhadyr 

Usk 
NP15 1GA 

 
Friday, 31 January 2025 

 

Notice of meeting  
 

Public Services Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday, 10th February, 2025 at 10.00 am, 
Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr USK 

 
Please note that a pre meeting will be held 30 minutes prior to the start of the 

meeting for members of the committee. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Item No Item Pages 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

3.   Public Open Forum 
 
Our Scrutiny Committee meetings are live streamed and a link to the live 
stream will be available on the meeting page of the Monmouthshire County 
Council website  
  
If you would like to speak under the Public Open Forum at an upcoming 
meeting you will need to give three working days’ notice in advance of the 
meeting by contacting Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk  
  
The amount of time afforded to each member of the public to speak is at the 
Chair’s discretion, but to enable us to accommodate multiple speakers we ask 
that contributions be no longer than 3 minutes.  
  
Alternatively, if you would like to submit a written, audio or video 
representation, please contact the team via the same email address to 
arrange this. The deadline for submitting representations to the Council is 5pm 
three clear working days in advance of the meeting. If combined 
representations received exceed 30 minutes, a selection of these based on 
theme will be shared at the meeting. All representations received will be made 
available to councillors prior to the meeting.  
  
If you would like to suggest future topics for scrutiny by one of our Scrutiny 
Committees, please do so by emailing Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk   

 

Public Document Pack

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk%2FmgCalendarMonthView.aspx%3FGL%3D1%26bcr%3D1&data=05%7C02%7CWendyBarnard3%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7C93e5292a1f654fee34aa08dd0fb8fe55%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C638684009386647777%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=f1FTw5U4tOxpc82z1nqk72y3svqNudjWle%2FOI4EWFK0%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

 
4.   Dentistry: Q & A session with the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

 
 

5.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th October 2024 

 
1 - 10 

6.   Public Services Scrutiny Committee forward work programme and 
Action List 

 

11 - 16 

7.   Council and Cabinet work planner 

 
17 - 18 

8.   To note the date and time of the next meeting: 7th April 2025 at 10.00am 

 
 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 

 



 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
County Councillor Jill Bond West End; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Steven Garratt Overmonnow; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Meirion Howells Llanbadoc & Usk; Independent 
County Councillor Penny Jones Raglan; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Tony Kear Llanbadoc & Usk; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Malcolm Lane Mardy; Welsh Conservative Party 

County Councillor Dale Rooke 
Chepstow Castle & 
Larkfield; 

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 

County Councillor Frances Taylor Magor West; Independent Group 
County Councillor Armand Watts Bulwark and Thornwell; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 

 

 
Public Information 

 
Access to paper copies of agendas and reports 
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public 
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please 
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard 
copy of this agenda.  
 
Welsh Language 
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or 
English.  We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your 
needs. 

 



 

 

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council 
 
Our purpose 
 
To become a zero-carbon county, supporting well-being, health and dignity for everyone at every 
stage of life. 
 
Objectives we are working towards 
 
• Fair place to live where the effects of inequality and poverty have been reduced. 
• Green place to live and work with reduced carbon emissions and making a positive 

contribution to addressing the climate and nature emergency.  
• Thriving and ambitious place, where there are vibrant town centres and where businesses 

can grow and develop.  
• Safe place to live where people have a home where they feel secure in.  
• Connected place where people feel part of a community and are valued.  
• Learning place where everybody has the opportunity to reach their potential.          
 

Our Values 
 
Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that 

affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do 

something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t 

answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help – building trust and 

engagement is a key foundation. 

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not 

seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and 

consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining 

why we did what we did.  

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and 

efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new 

ways of working. 

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved 

so we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers, 

but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the 

things that most positively impact our people and places. 

Kindness: We will show kindness to all those we work with putting the importance of relationships 

and the connections we have with one another at the heart of all interactions. 



 

 

Monmouthshire Scrutiny Question Guide 
 

Role of the Pre-meeting 

1. Why is the Committee scrutinising this? (background, key issues) 

2. What is the Committee’s role and what outcome do Members want to achieve? 

3. Is there sufficient information to achieve this? If not, who could provide this? 

 

- Agree the order of questioning and which Members will lead 

- Agree questions for officers and questions for the Cabinet Member 

Questions for the Meeting 

Scrutinising Performance 

 

1. How does performance compare with 

previous years? Is it better/worse? Why? 

 

2. How does performance compare with other 

councils/other service providers? Is it 

better/worse? Why? 

 

3. How does performance compare with set 

targets? Is it better/worse? Why? 

 

4. How were performance targets set? Are 

they challenging enough/realistic? 

 

5. How do service users/the public/partners 

view the performance of the service? 

 

6. Have there been any recent audit and 

inspections? What were the findings? 

 

7. How does the service contribute to the 

achievement of corporate objectives? 

 

8. Is improvement/decline in performance 

linked to an increase/reduction in resource? 

What capacity is there to improve? 

Scrutinising Policy 

 

1. Who does the policy affect ~ directly and 

indirectly? Who will benefit most/least? 

 

2. What is the view of service 

users/stakeholders? What consultation has 

been undertaken? Did the consultation 

process comply with the Gunning 

Principles? Do stakeholders believe it will 

achieve the desired outcome? 

 

3. What is the view of the community as a 

whole - the ‘taxpayer’ perspective? 

 

4. What methods were used to consult 

with stakeholders? Did the process 

enable all those with a stake to have 

their say? 

 

5. What practice and options have been 

considered in developing/reviewing this 

policy? What evidence is there to inform 

what works? Does the policy relate to an 

area where there is a lack of published 

research or other evidence? 

 

6. Does the policy relate to an area where 

there are known inequalities? 

 

7. Does this policy align to our corporate 

objectives, as defined in our corporate 

plan? Does it adhere to our Welsh 

Language Standards? 

 



 

 

8. Have all relevant sustainable development, 

equalities and safeguarding implications 

 

9. been taken into consideration? For 

example, what are the procedures that 

need to be in place to protect children? 

10.  

11. How much will this cost to implement and 

what funding source has been identified? 

12.  

13. How will performance of the policy be 

measured and the impact evaluated 

General Questions: 

Empowering Communities 

 How are we involving local communities and empowering them to design and deliver 

services to suit local need? 

 Do we have regular discussions with communities about service priorities and what level 

of service the council can afford to provide in the future? 

 Is the service working with citizens to explain the role of different partners in delivering 

the service, and managing expectations? 

 Is there a framework and proportionate process in place for collective performance 

assessment, including from a citizen’s perspective, and do you have accountability 

arrangements to support this? 

 Has an Equality Impact Assessment been carried out? If so, can the Leader and 

Cabinet/Senior Officers provide members with copies and a detailed explanation of the 

EQIA conducted in respect of these proposals? 

 Can the Leader and Cabinet/Senior Officers assure members that these proposals 

comply with Equality and Human Rights legislation? Do the proposals comply with the 

Local Authority’s Strategic Equality Plan? 

Service Demands 

 How will policy and legislative change affect how the council operates? 

 Have we considered the demographics of our council and how this will impact on service 

delivery and funding in the future? 

 Have you identified and considered the long-term trends that might affect your service 

area, what impact these trends could have on your service/your service could have on 

these trends, and what is being done in response? 

 

Financial Planning 

 Do we have robust medium and long-term financial plans in place? 

 Are we linking budgets to plans and outcomes and reporting effectively on these? 

 

Making savings and generating income 

 Do we have the right structures in place to ensure that our efficiency, improvement and 

transformational approaches are working together to maximise savings? 



 

 

 How are we maximising income? 

  Have we compared other council’s policies to maximise income and fully considered 

the implications on service users? 

 Do we have a workforce plan that takes into account capacity, costs, and skills of the 

actual versus desired workforce? 

 

Questions to ask within a year of the decision: 

 Were the intended outcomes of the proposal achieved or were there other results? 

 Were the impacts confined to the group you initially thought would be affected i.e. older 

people, or were others affected e.g. people with disabilities, parents with young children? 

 Is the decision still the right decision or do adjustments need to be made? 

 

Questions for the Committee to conclude… 

Do we have the necessary information to form conclusions/make recommendations to the 

executive, council, other partners? If not, do we need to: 

(i) Investigate the issue in more detail? 

(ii) Obtain further information from other witnesses – Executive Member, independent 

expert, members of the local community, service users, regulatory bodies…  

Agree further actions to be undertaken within a timescale/future monitoring report… 

  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Monmouthshire Select Committee Minutes 
 

 

Meeting of Public Services Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber, County Hall, The 
Rhadyr USK on Monday, 14th October, 2024 at 10.00 am 

Councillors Present Officers in Attendance 

County Councillor  Armand Watts (Chair) 
 
 
County Councillors: Jill Bond, Steven Garratt, 
Meirion Howells, Malcolm Lane, Dale Rooke, 
Frances Taylor and Armand Watts 
 
Also in attendance:  County Councillors:  Ian 
Chandler, Cabinet Member for Social Care, Strong 
Safeguarding and Accessible Health Services,  Louise 
Brown substituting for Tony Kear, Emma Bryn and 
Peter Strong 

Hazel Ilett, Scrutiny Manager 
Robert McGowan, Policy and Scrutiny Officer 
Sharran Lloyd, LSB Development Manager 
Lloyd Hambridge, Divisional Director of Primary 
Care, Community Services and Complex Care 
Rachel Prangley, Primary Care Unit 

  
APOLOGIES: Apologies were received from Councillors Penny Jones who was receiving surgery and 
Councillor Tony Kear who was being substituted by Councillor Louise Brown. 

 
https://www.youtube.com/live/SCVVWAezf-c?si=hgee7BskCmRk_wof  

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

None received. 
 

2. Public Open Forum  
 

No public present. 
 

3. Dentistry Services  
 

Lloyd Hambridge, Divisional Director of Primary Care and Community Services at 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB) provided an update on dentistry 

together with Rachel Prangley, Interim Head of Primary Care at ABUHB. Prior to 

answering Members’ questions, Lloyd highlighted the key current challenges of NHS 

Dentistry in Wales and focussed on the efforts the Health Board is taking to address 

them, as follows: 

  

 Significant challenges due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19 and the necessary 

infection prevention control measures. 

 

 Sustainability challenges related to workforce and recruitment issues, which the 

Health Board is attempting to address through a dedicated sustainability board 

and action plan. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 5

https://www.youtube.com/live/SCVVWAezf-c?si=hgee7BskCmRk_wof


 

 

 General Dental Services and Community Dental Services, general dental services 

being commissioned through independent contractors under the National Health 

Service contractual regulations of 2006. 

 

 In Monmouth, there are 10 NHS General Dental contracts operating across nine 

sites, with a mix of the older UDA contract and the newer contractual reform 

introduced in 2022. 

 

 The Health Board has faced several contract resignations over the past few years 

but has managed to continue providing NHS dental care through new providers 

and re-provisioning existing contracts. 

 The Health Board is investing in dental services, including significant funding for 

the Tredegar Health and Well-being Centre and the Newport East Health and 

Well-being development. 

 

 Community Dental Services provide care for vulnerable children and adults, 

including those in care homes, special schools, and other at-risk groups, 

supported by an oral health promotion team. 

 

 The Health Board supports preventative dental programs such as Gwên am Byth 

for care home residents and Designed to Smile for children, focusing on 

toothbrushing and fluoride varnish applications. 

 

 In response to feedback, Welsh Government and Digital Health and Care Wales 

are developing a Dental Access Portal to centralize demand data and improve 

access to dental services. 

 

Key points raised by Members: 

 

 A member asked about the extent of preventative work for young people, 

children, people with disabilities, and older people, and whether it is extensive 

across the region, referring to a figure of 400 children.  

 

Lloyd advised that the health board is tasked with implementing the nationally 

agreed contract, which includes a shift from the old model of routine six-month 

visits to a risk-based assessment model known as ACORN. This new model aims to 

ensure that the right people are seen at the right time.  

 

 The member inquired if the change in the dental provision model was the reason 

for the observed differences and whether better communication about the 

changes could have helped in understanding the new model.  

 

Lloyd confirmed that the shift to the new model was part of the contract reform 

Page 2



 

 

that started in 2022. He acknowledged that better communication could have 

helped in understanding the reasons for the change.  

 

 The Member asked if the ACORN assessment was the reason why many NHS 

dental practices were going out of business.  

 

Lloyd clarified that the practices did not go out of business but stopped providing 

NHS services, making a business decision to provide alternative services as 

independent contractors.  

 

 It was asked what steps the health board is taking to improve access to NHS 

dental care, particularly for those struggling to find an available dentist in the 

region?  

 

Lloyd explained that the health board aims to re-provide services in areas of 

greatest need whenever there is a contract resignation. The board works closely 

with independent contractors and have set up a sustainability board to address 

recruitment and retention challenges. He also mentioned the creation of dental 

collaboratives to help practices work together and address local challenges.  

 

 A member asked whether there are any current waiting times available for NHS 

dental care?  

 

Lloyd replied that the board doesn’t have data on current waiting times because 

each practice holds that information. However, the new dental access portal, which 

will be rolled out soon, will help provide insight into the level of demand and 

support people in accessing the right service.  

 

 It was asked whether there are specific initiatives or programmes in place to 

promote preventative dental care and oral health education within the 

community, especially for vulnerable groups such as children and the elderly?  

 

Lloyd referred to two key programmes: "Designed to Smile" for children and "Gwên 

am Byth" for the elderly. He also discussed a population oral health programme 

targeting high-risk groups like the homeless and looked-after children.  

 

 A member queried whether there are any initiatives to train new dentists and 

retain them in the NHS?  

 

Lloyd explained that they work with Health Education Improvement Wales, which 

has published a workforce plan up to 2029. There are bursaries available for dental 

training roles, and they are setting up initiatives to recruit and retain healthcare 

Page 3



 

 

professionals. He also mentioned the possibility of using incentives like "golden 

handcuffs" to retain staff, although this has not been necessary so far. 

 

 A member requested a summary of all the figures discussed (Action). 

 

 Members asked how we can understand if the people who were receiving NHS 

dentistry services before are receiving them now?  

 

Rachel explained that they re-provide the level of dental activity based on the 

number of patients affected by contract changes. They write to every patient to 

inform them of the new provider. However, patients may choose to stay with their 

current practice if it offers alternative services.  

 

 Members questioned the impact of the change in the provision of services (from 

six-monthly to yearly check-ups) on onward services, such as orthodontic services 

for children and young people?  

 

Lloyd suggested that it is too early to determine the impact of the new contract on 

orthodontic services. However, he noted that the pandemic has already led to an 

increase in orthodontic referrals, doubling the numbers from 2019 to 2022. 

 

 The Member queried what the actual current waiting time is for orthodontic 

treatment for children and young people?  

 

Lloyd replied that the waiting time for orthodontic treatment is currently between 3 

to 4 years. Children are prioritized over adults within this system.  

 

 A member questioned whether if they were attending Thrive in Magor, where 

would they be re-provided to?  

 

Lloyd confirmed that patients from Thrive in Magor have been re-provided to 

Severn Dental in Chepstow. He also mentioned that community transport schemes 

are available to assist with travel.  

 

 A member queried how regularly patients are able to get hygiene appointments 

with a professional hygienist?  

 

It was explained that the availability of hygiene appointments is based on a needs-

based assessment conducted by the dental practice. The frequency of appointments, 

such as four times a year, depends on the individual's oral health needs.  

 

Page 4



 

 

 A member asked whether the 40% of unfilled emergency treatment 

appointments impacts the capacity for dentists to see other patients?  

 

Members heard that the unfilled emergency appointments do not impact the 

capacity for other patients as practices can use their local waiting lists to fill these 

slots if they remain unfilled. This ensures flexibility and maximizes the use of 

available appointments.  

 

 Members asked how has the brushing initiative in schools had been received in 

Monmouthshire?  

 

They were advised that the brushing initiative has been well received in 

Monmouthshire schools, with only two out of twelve schools refusing to participate. 

It helps build relationships between dental practitioners, school staff, and children, 

potentially reducing dental fear.  

 

 It was questioned how the percentage of NHS dental practices in Monmouthshire 

compare to other health boards?  

 

Members heard that Monmouthshire has 10 NHS dental contracts out of 76 across 

the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board. The distribution is based on 

population, with Monmouthshire having a proportionate share.  

 

 A member queried how the number of primary schools participating in the 

brushing initiative in Monmouthshire compares to other areas?  

 

They were advised that brushing initiative targets areas of greatest deprivation. In 

Monmouthshire, 10 out of 12 eligible primary schools participate, which is 

relatively high compared to other areas where refusal rates are higher.  

 

 A member queried whether patients could transfer from one NHS dental list to 

another to be closer to their dentist?  

 

Lloyd suggested that patients are assigned to new practices based on proximity and 

availability. 

 

 A member asked how the risk-based model for dental check-ups ensure patients 

do not fall through the net?  

 

They were advised that risk-based model involves a comprehensive clinical 

assessment to ensure that patients receive the appropriate level of care based on 

their oral health needs, rather than routine six-monthly check-ups.  

 

Page 5



 

 

 A member asked how new patients from closed practices are managed by the 

new practices?  

 

Lloyd replied that new practices prioritize children and those already in active 

treatment. Routine care and access for other patients may be slower initially.  

 

 The member asked how far urgent dental treatment goes and what happens if a 

patient needs more care, but does not have a dentist?  

They heard that urgent dental appointments address immediate needs, which may 

include temporary or full treatments. If further care is needed, the patient will 

continue to receive treatment as required.  

 

 A member queried where the dental access portal be available, and how people 

will find the information?  

 

Lloyd advised that the dental access portal will be available on the Health Board's 

website, and there will be a dedicated phone line for those without digital access. 

Communications will be made through various channels to ensure awareness.  

 

 A member asked what the board is doing to address the population growth in 

Monmouthshire in terms of dental services?  

 

Lloyd explained that the board maximises available funding to increase dental 

activity and provision as needed, however, the board is limited by the funding 

allocated by Welsh Government.  

 

 It was asked how the Welsh NHS dental contracts differ from the English ones?  

 

Lloyd advised that the Welsh NHS dental contract focuses on a needs-based 

assessment rather than units of dental activity. The total contract value is the same, 

but that the metrics differ.  

 

 Members queried the board’s overall assessment of the need for dental services 

in the Health Board area?  

 

Lloyd advised that the health board commissions services based on the population 

of Aneurin Bevan University Health Board area and that they face challenges due 

to limited access to private dental data and rely on population needs assessments 

and waiting list data to inform their decisions.  

 

 A member asked how the lack of patient registration with dental practices affect 

continuity of care and shared health records?  

Page 6



 

 

 

They were advised that patients are not registered with dental practices in the same 

way as with GPs. When a contract ends, patients are contacted based on the list 

held by the Business Services Authority. Continuity of care is managed through 

prioritizing children and those in active treatment.  

 

 

 A question was asked about how the lack of patient registration with dental 

practices affect waiting lists and continuity of care?  

 

Members heard that patients are not registered with dental practices in the same 

way as with GPs. When a contract ends, patients are contacted based on the list 

held by the Business Services Authority. Continuity of care is managed through 

prioritising children and those in active treatment.  

 

 A member asked why patients from Monmouth are being offered spaces at Saint 

Julian's, which is far away, instead of closer options like Trevor Noy dental surgery 

in Monmouth?  

 

Lloyd replied that Trevor Noy dental surgery had returned one of their NHS 

contracts, indicating they do not have the capacity to take on more NHS patients. 

Patients can access NHS dental services at any available location, and the closest 

available option was Saint Julian's.  

 

 A member asked who keeps a register of all dental practices, both private and 

NHS, within Wales?  

 

Lloyd replied that the NHS keeps a register of all NHS dental practices. Private 

dental practices are not obligated to share their data with the NHS. The Health 

Inspectorate Wales oversees the standards of all dental care facilities.  

 

 A member asked whether if patients change dental practices due to contract 

changes, their records transfer to the new provider?  

 

Lloyd replied that unfortunately dental records do not automatically transfer to the 

new provider when patients change practices due to contract changes, which can 

impact continuity of care, especially for those with complex dental histories.  

 

 It was questioned how the number of NHS dental practices in Monmouthshire 

compare to the population, and is there a per head ratio?  

 

Members heard that Monmouthshire has 10 NHS dental practices. The allocation of 

dental services is based on the population, with Monmouthshire's provision being 

Page 7



 

 

proportionate to its population size. Lloyd agreed to confirm the exact per head 

ratio and comparison to other health boards in a briefing paper following the 

meeting (Action). 

 

 The chair asked how the Health Board address the needs of homeless individuals 

for dental care?  

Lloyd explained that the health board has a health inclusion service that works with 

socially vulnerable groups, including the homeless. They receive information from 

various sources, such as local authorities and GPs, and provide necessary dental 

care through community dental services or drop-in centres.  

 

 The chair asked whether there is data on the number of homeless individuals 

requiring dental care, and has there been an increase in this trend?  

 

Lloyd advised that the board collects data on homeless individuals through its 

health inclusion service. While there is an indication of an increasing trend, specific 

data would need to be provided after the meeting.  

 

Chair’s Summary: 

 

The Chair offered the Committee’s sincerest thanks to Lloyd and Rachel for such a 

comprehensive update and for their patience in answering the many questions of the 

committee and other elected members in attendance. It was agreed to invite Lloyd and 

Rachel to provide a further update ON 10TH February, due to the Committee’s ongoing 

concerns about dentistry services (Action).  

 
 

4. Public Services Scrutiny Committee's Forward Work Programme and Action List  
 

 

The following were suggested as topics for potential inclusion into the forward work 

programme: 

 

 Hold a workshop with the Police on County Lines 

 Investigate drug-related deaths in Monmouthshire and the impact of synthetic 

drugs  

 Violence and Women ~ Scrutinize the delivery of the Gwent perpetrator 

assessment and the impact of inappropriate sexual behaviour among 10-17 year-

olds.  Address the increase in misogyny in schools, including the influence of 

figures like Andrew Tate. 

 Flood Risk Management ~ Jointly with Place Scrutiny Committee, inviting 

National Resources Wales 

 Public Transport and Accessibility: Assess the impact of dental service relocations 

on public transport accessibility for residents. 

Page 8



 

 

 Update on the flying start ~ Update on the collaboration between health visitors 

and Sure Start, including changes in reporting structures and service provision.  

 Request a comprehensive health update from Aneurin Bevan University Health 

Board (ABUHB), covering:  

 Holistic approach to supporting older people. 

 Primary and secondary care integration. 

 Resource, nurses, doctors, sustainability and retention. 

 Communication with the public on service provision. 

 Preventative services, colon tests, jabs. 

 Updates on specific projects like the Neville Hall Velindre satellite.  

 The uptake of preventative measures like vaccinations, especially among 

children.  

 Adult Mental Health Services ~ adult suicide 

 Care for people in the community with dementia, family support services. 

 Community Policing 

 Invite the Integrated Strategic Partnership Board to discuss dentistry and the flow 

of funds. 

 
 

5. Cabinet and Council Work Planner  
 

The planner was noted.  
 

6. To confirm the minutes of the Special meeting held on 25th July 2024  
 

The Chair proposed the minutes be accepted, which was seconded by Councillor Howells.  
 

7. To note the date and time of the next meeting: 9th December 2024  
 

The date and time of the next formal meeting was noted as 10th February 2025 at 10am, 
however, the Committee agreed to hold an informal workshop on County Lines with the Police 
on 9th December 2024, to which all elected members would be invited. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 11.54 am  
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

Public Services Scrutiny Committee 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

14th October 2024 Dentistry Services To invite the health board to discuss 

dentistry services and take members’ 

questions. 

ABUHB (Health 

Board) 

External Scrutiny 

9th December 2024 

 

Invite all Members 

 

Drug Related Deaths 

in Monmouthshire 

To discuss drug related deaths with the 

Heroin & Crack Cocaine Action Area Co-

ordinator for Gwent Police. 

Gwent Police External Scrutiny 

Member Workshop: 

 

County Lines and 

Organised Crime 

To discuss county lines, organised crime 

and modern-day slavery in the county with 

Gwent Police. 

Gwent Police Workshop 

10th February 2025 Dentistry Services To invite Aneurin Beavan University Health 

Board to provide a further update on 

dentistry services. 

Lloyd Hambridge 

Rachel Prangley  

(ABUHB) 

External Scrutiny 

7th April 2025 *To be confirmed * 

Local Flood Strategy 

(joint with Place) 

Pre-decision scrutiny of adoption of the 

Local Flood Strategy.  

Craig O’Connor 

Cllr Maby 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 

     

To be confirmed 

 

Mental Health 

Services  

To invite ABUHB and Mind to discuss their 

services.  

To be confirmed 

 

External Scrutiny  

To be confirmed 

 

VAWDASV Regional 

Strategy  

To assess what the regional strategy delivers 

for Monmouthshire. 

To be confirmed External Scrutiny 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

Public Services Scrutiny Committee 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

To be confirmed Pre-decision Scrutiny 

of the Public Service 

Board Annual Report 

To undertake pre-decision scrutiny of the 

report and to draw agree any items for 

future scrutiny.  

Richard Jones 

Sharran Lloyd 

 

Pre-decision 

Scrutiny/Performance 

Monitoring 

To be confirmed 

 

Integrated Services 

Partnership Board 

To discuss the role and remit of the 

Integrated Services Partnership Board and 

how it delivers services in Monmouthshire. 

Jane Rodgers and 

Nikki Needle 

 

Chair of the ISPB  

Performance Review 

 

 

Corporate and Community Plan Items for the Committee’s consideration for inclusion into the People Scrutiny Forward Plan: 

Progress the 

development of the 

new Magor and 

Undy Community 

Hub 

    

Invest in better bus 

infrastructure 

    

Work with the 

police, partners and 

communities to 

tackle anti-social 

behaviour 

    

P
age 12



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

Public Services Scrutiny Committee 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

To explore streams: 

Housing Social 

Grant, Substance 

Misuse Grants, to 

assess what they 

are delivering for 

Monmouthshire 

    

Youth Offending 

Service ~ how 

partners contribute 

and what it delivers 

for Monmouthshire 

    

 

 Hold a workshop with the Police on County Lines 

 Investigate drug-related deaths in Monmouthshire and the impact of synthetic drugs  

 Violence and Women ~ Scrutinize the delivery of the Gwent perpetrator assessment and the impact of inappropriate sexual 

behaviour among 10-17 year-olds.  Address the increase in misogyny in schools, including the influence of figures like Andrew 

Tate. 

 Flood Risk Management ~ Jointly with Place Scrutiny Committee, inviting National Resources Wales 

 Public Transport and Accessibility: Assess the impact of dental service relocations on public transport accessibility for residents. 

 Update on the flying start ~ Update on the collaboration between health visitors and Sure Start, including changes in reporting 

structures and service provision.  

 Request a comprehensive health update from Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB), covering:  

- Holistic approach to supporting older people. 

- Primary and secondary care integration. 

P
age 13



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2024-25 
 

   

 

- Resource, nurses, doctors, sustainability and retention. 

- Communication with the public on service provision. 

- Preventative services, colon tests, jabs. 

- Updates on specific projects like the Neville Hall Velindre satellite.  

- The uptake of preventative measures like vaccinations, especially among children.  

- Adult Mental Health Services ~ adult suicide 

- Care for people in the community with dementia, family support services. 

 Community Policing 

 Invite the Integrated Strategic Partnership Board to discuss dentistry and the flow of funds. 

 

 

P
age 14



Action List for Public Services Scrutiny Committee 

Meeting 24th October 2024 

Minute: Action Officer / Member 

Dentistry 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 A member requested a summary of all the 

figures discussed. 

 Lloyd agreed to confirm the exact per head 

ratio and comparison to other health boards 

in a briefing paper following the meeting. 

 It was agreed to invite Lloyd and Rachel to 

provide a further update on 10th February, 

due to the Committee’s ongoing concerns 

about dentistry services. 

 

The briefing paper has been emailed to the 

committee.  

Hazel Ilett 

Work 

Programme 

The following was agreed for inclusion into the work 

programme in due course: 

 

 Hold a workshop with the Police on County Lines 

 Investigate drug-related deaths in 

Monmouthshire and the impact of synthetic drugs  

 Violence and Women ~ Scrutinize the delivery of 

the Gwent perpetrator assessment and the impact 

of inappropriate sexual behaviour among 10-17 

year-olds.  Address the increase in misogyny in 

schools, including the influence of figures like 

Andrew Tate. 

 Flood Risk Management ~ Jointly with Place 

Scrutiny Committee, inviting National Resources 

Wales 

 Public Transport and Accessibility: Assess the 

impact of dental service relocations on public 

transport accessibility for residents. 

 Update on the flying start ~ Update on the 

collaboration between health visitors and Sure 

Start, including changes in reporting structures 

and service provision.  

 Request a comprehensive health update from 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (ABUHB), 

covering:  

 Holistic approach to supporting older people. 

Hazel Ilett 

Page 15



Action List for Public Services Scrutiny Committee 

 

 Primary and secondary care integration. 

 Resource, nurses, doctors, sustainability and 

retention. 

 Communication with the public on service 

provision. 

 Preventative services, colon tests, jabs. 

 Updates on specific projects like the Neville 

Hall Velindre satellite.  

 The uptake of preventative measures like 

vaccinations, especially among children.  

 Adult Mental Health Services ~ adult suicide 

 Care for people in the community with 

dementia, family support services. 

 Community Policing 

 Invite the Integrated Strategic Partnership Board 

to discuss dentistry and the flow of funds. 

 

Page 16



Committee / 

Decision Maker

Meeting date / Decision 

due
Report Title Cabinet member Purpose Author

Date item added to the 

planner

Council 01-Jul-25

RLDP for Adoption Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the RLDP following receipt of the 

Inspector's report, making it the County's 

Development Plan as defined by S38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Mark Hand / Rachel 

Lewis
23-Aug-22

Cabinet 05-May-25

Pavement Café Policy Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

To adopt the pavement café policy as the basis 

for making decisions on applications for licences
Mark Hand / Paul 

Keeble
4-Oct-22

ICMD 09-Apr-25

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 4 Ben Callard - Resources

Council 06-Mar-25

Appointment of Chief Officer - Head of Transport - 

Exempt info

Catrin Maby - Climate Change and 

Environment

Deb Hill Howells 21-Jan-25

Council 06-Mar-25

Publication of the Councils Pay Policy Ben Callard - Resources

To approve the publication of Monmouthshire 
County Council’s Pay Policy, in compliance with 
the Localism Act.

Matt Gatehouse / Pip 

Green
17-Jan-25

Council 06-Mar-25

Contract Procedure Rules Ben Callard - Resources

Scott James 9-Jan-25

Council 06-Mar-25

2025/26 Final Budget sign off including CT resolution Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

Council 06-Mar-25

2025/26 Capital Strategy & Treasury Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

Cabinet 05-Mar-25
Approval of a Discretionary Policy for Council Tax 

Premiums

Ben Callard - Resources

Ruth Donovan 27-Jan-25

Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2025/26 Final Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2024/25 Revenue and Capital Monitoring Month 9 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 05-Mar-25

2025/26 WCF/Mon Farm Strategy Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 19-Feb-25

UK Shared Prosperity Fund post March 2025 – 

financial implications and impact

Paul Griffiths - Sustainable 

Economy

Hannah Jones 10-Jul-24

ICMD 29-Jan-25

2025/26 Community Council and Police Precepts 

final

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 17-Dec-24

Council 23-Jan-25

Council Diary 2025/26 Angela Sandles - Engagement 

John Pearson

Council 23-Jan-25

GWENT REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD (RPB) 

AREA PLAN AND RPB ANNUAL REPORT 23/24

Ian Chandler - Social Care & 

Safeguarding
Natasha Harris 

(Torfaen) 

Council 23-Jan-25

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2025/26 Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 13-Jun-24

Cabinet 22-Jan-25 Business case for the purchase of a property in 
Abergavenny to develop supported accommodation 
for care experienced young people

Ben Callard - Resources

Jane Rogers 7-Jan-25

Cabinet 22-Jan-25

2025/26 Draft Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals

Ben Callard - Resources

Jon Davies 4-Jun-24

Cabinet 22-Jan-25

Education Middle Tier Martyn Groucutt - Education

Will McLean 20-Nov-24

P
age 18


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th October 2024
	Minutes

	6 Public Services Scrutiny Committee forward work programme and Action List
	Action List for Public Services Scrutiny Committee 24th October 2024

	7 Council and Cabinet work planner

